
 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2023 @ 6:30 pm 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
 

Board Members: 

Chairman David Campbell 

Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten    

Member April Evans     

Member Douglas Hilmes 

Member Daniel Gonzalez 

 

Alternate Board Members 

Alternate Dan Harper 

Alternate Gabor Kishegyi 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Clerk Amber Brown 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Building Official Robert Bitgood 

 

 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a method 
for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town 
Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

1



 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. February 7, 2023 minutes 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Site plan approval for 401 Atlantic St – garage addition 
B. Site plan approval for 214 Surf Rd – building addition 
C. Site plan approval for 210 Second Ave – cabana accessory structure 
D. Site plan approval for 320 Avenue A – garage accessory structure 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. Second reading of Ordinance 2023-01 – Landscaping and Trees 

Section 9A 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING; APPENDIX “A” OF 

THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING CHAPTER 9A 

REGARDING LANDSCAPING AND TREES; SPECIFICALLY 

AMENDING SECTION 9A-4, PERMIT REQUIRED FOR CUTTING 

DOWN TREE; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 9A-5, 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT; REVIEW OF APPLICATION; 

SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 9A-6, ON-SITE 

INSPECTION; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 9A-7, 

MINIMUM TREE PLANTINGS; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 

SECTION 9A-10, EXCEPTIONS; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 

SECTION 9A-12, PENALTY; AMENDING ARTICLE IV, CHAPTER 

7A, SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS; SPECIFICALLY 

AMENDING SECTION 7A-53, FENCES AND WALLS; 

SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-58, VISION CLEARANCE 

AT CORNERS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION 

CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 

REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 

ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

 
B. Second reading of Ordinance 2023-02 – Second Kitchens 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING; APPENDIX “A” OF 

THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING SECTION 1A-3 TO 

ADD THE DEFINITION FOR KITCHEN OR KITCHEN FACILITY; 

AMENDING CHAPTER 7A REGARDING SECOND KITCHENS; 

2



 

 

SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-31, SECTION 7A-32, AND 

SECTION 7A-33 TO PERMIT SECOND KITCHENS IN 1-RS, 2-RS, 

AND 3-RS ZONING DISTRICTS; CREATING SECTION 7A-72 TO 

PROVIDE SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS FOR 

SECOND KITCHENS IN SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICTS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION 

CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 

REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 

ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Please limit comments to items that are not on the agenda 
 

8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

3



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2023 @ 6:30pm 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
 

Board Members: 

Chairman David Campbell 

Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten       

Member April Evans     

Member Douglas Hilmes 

Member Daniel Gonzalez 

Alternate Dan Harper 

Alternate Gabor Kishegyi 

 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT: In order 
to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the proceedings. It will be your 
responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim 
as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special 
accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 
724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

4



 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairman David Campbell called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted the roll call 
 
Present:      Staff Present:     
Chairman David Campbell   Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro  
Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten   Building Official Robert Bitgood   
Member April Evans    Town Clerk Amber Brown    
Alternate Dan Harper    Town Attorney Clifford Repperger  
Alternate Gabor Kishegyi   Building Admin. Megan Newell 
 
Absent: 
Member Douglas Hilmes 
Member Daniel Gonzalez 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A. January 10, 2023 minutes 

 
Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten made a motion to approve the January 10, 2023 

minutes; Member April Evans seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Site plan approval for 921 Oak St – Two-car attached garage 
 

Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten moved to approve the site plan for 921 Oak St; 
Member April Evans seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
B. Site plan approval for 419 Riverview Ln – Room addition 

 
Member April Evans moved to approve the site plan for 419 Riverview Ln; Vice 
Chairman Kurt Belsten seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
C. Site plan approval for 404 Colony St – Porch addition  

 
Member April Evans moved to approve the site plan for 404 Colony St; Vice 
Chairman Kurt Belsten seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. Proposed Ordinance 2023-01 – Landscaping and Trees Section 9A 

 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger read Ordinance 2023-01 

5



 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING; APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING CHAPTER 9A REGARDING 
LANDSCAPING AND TREES; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 
9A-4, PERMIT REQUIRED FOR CUTTING DOWN TREE; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING AND RENAMING SECTION 9A-5, 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT; REVIEW OF APPLICATION; MINIMUM 
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 9A- 6, ON-SITE INSPECTION;  SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 9A-7, MINIMUM TREE PLANTINGS; SPECIFICALLY 
AMENDING SECTION 9A-10, EXCEPTIONS; SPECIFICALLY 
AMENDING SECTION 9A- 12, PENALTY; AMENDING ARTICLE IV, 
CHAPTER 7A, SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-53, FENCES AND WALLS; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-58, VISION CLEARANCE AT 
CORNERS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the amendments to the ordinance 
which include the following.   

 Amends Section 9A-4 to require permitting, removal standards, and 
exempt trees posing and unacceptable risk in accordance with Florida Law. 

 Amends Section 9A-5 to regarding number of tree removal plans required. 

 Amends Section 9A-6 to provide for dimensions for replacement trees. 

 Amends Section 9A-7 to revise minimum tree plantings for new 
construction. 

 Amends Section 9A-10 to provide for clarified exemptions in accordance 
with State Law. 

 Amends Section 9A-12 to provide for enhances penalties for mature tree 
removal without a permit. 

 Amends Section 7A-53 to allow for fences/walls extending beyond the front 
building line on residential lots abutting A1A and Oak Street south of Ocean 
Avenue to be erected to a maximum height of six (6) feet with required 
plantings and corner lot limitations. 

 Amends Section 7A-53 to clarify references to fences and walls. 

 Amends Section 7A-58 to clarify references to fences and walls. 
 
Member Dan Harper provided a document of his feedback of the proposed 
ordinance and spoke about his reasons why some of the proposed sections should 
be amended and others should not be adopted at all.  The sections included 9A-
7(c), 9A-4, 9A-6(b)(2), 9A-7(a), and 9A-12. 
 
Further discussion ensued 
 

6



 

 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the fine amounts being set by state 
statute, and the Best Management Practices book is referenced in State Statute. 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the Board being able to table the 
discussion, but it will still go for first reading to the Town Commission this month. 
 

Member April Evans made a motion to table this till the March meeting; Vice 
Chairman Kurt Belsten seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
B. Proposed Ordinance 2023-02 – Second Kitchens 

 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger read Ordinance 2023-02 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING; APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING SECTION 1A-3 TO ADD THE 
DEFINITION FOR KITCHEN OR KITCHEN FACILITY; AMENDING 
CHAPTER 7A REGARDING SECOND KITCHENS; SPECIFICALLY 
AMENDING SECTION 7A-31, SECTION 7A-32, AND SECTION 7A-33 
TO PERMIT SECOND KITCHENS IN 1-RS, 2-RS, AND 3-RS ZONING 
DISTRICTS; CREATING SECTION 7A-72 TO PROVIDE 
SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS FOR SECOND 
KITCHENS IN SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the amendments to the ordinance 
which include the following.   

 Amends Section 1A-3 to add a definition for “kitchen” or “kitchen Facility” 
which excludes outdoor barbeque areas without a range or stove. 

 Amends Section 7A-31 to cite to appropriate supplementary regulations. 

 Amends Section 7A-32 to cite to appropriate supplementary regulations. 

 Amends Section 7A-33 to cite to appropriate supplementary regulations. 

 Creates Section 7A-72 to allow for second kitchens in 1-RS, 2-RS, and 3-RS 
zoning districts with permitting and regulatory conditions. 

 
Further discussion ensued 
 
Member Dan Harper spoke about concerns that the exterior entrance would 
convert the residence from a single-family residence to a multifamily residence. 
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the ordinance being written in a 
way to prevent multifamily residence. 
 
Member April Evans spoke about adding a section to prohibit sub-meters for 
electric. 
 

7



 

 

Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten moved to approve Ordinance 2023-02; Member 
April Evans seconded; Motion carried 4-1 with Member Dan Harper dissenting. 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 

None 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 

 
9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

A. Tree ordinance 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Member April Evans moved to adjourn; Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten seconded; 
Motion carried 5-0.  

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

______________________  _________________________ 

David Campbell, Chairman   Amber Brown, Town Clerk  

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Planning and Zoning Board/LPA 

Section: Public Hearing 

Meeting Date:  March 7, 2023 

Subject:  Proposed Ordinance 2023-01 (Landscaping and Trees Section 9A and 
Fences and Walls 7A-53 and 7A-58) 

 

Submitted By:  Town Attorney Repperger 

Background Information: 
 
On June 15, 2022, the Town Commission directed that Town Staff develop an Ordinance 
improving regulation regarding landscaping and trees.   
 
On February 7, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Board/LPA continued its consideration 
of the proposed ordinance to March 7, 2023. 
 
On February 15, 2023 the Town Commission passed Ordinance No. 2023-01 on First 
Reading. 
 
Summary of Proposed Ordinance Amendments: 
 
• Amends Section 9A-4 to require permitting, removal standards, and exempt trees 

posing and unacceptable risk in accordance with Florida Law.  
 
• Amends Section 9A-5 to regarding number of tree removal plans required.  

 
• Amends Section 9A-6 to provide for dimensions for replacement trees and 

justification for removal permits.  
 
• Amends Section 9A-7 to revise minimum tree plantings for new construction and to 

add maintenance and replacement requirements. 
 
• Amends Section 9A-10 to provide for clarified exemptions in accordance with State 

Law. 
 
• Amends Section 9A-12 to provide for enhanced penalties for mature tree removal 

without a permit. 
 
• Amends Section 7A-53 to allow for fences/walls extending beyond the front building 

line on residential lots abutting A1A and Oak Street south of Ocean Avenue to be 
erected to a maximum height of six (6) feet with required plantings and corner lot 
limitations.  

52



 
• Amends Section 7A-53 to clarify references to fences and walls.  

 
• Amends Section 7A-53 to add entrance gate standards. 

 
• Amends Section 7A-58 to clarify references to fences and walls.  

Attachments: 

•  Draft Ordinance 2023-01. 

•  Minutes from Town Commission Meeting of June 15, 2022 

•  Email from Town Planner Corey O’Gorman regarding additional considerations. 

53



 
1 

 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2023-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING; 
APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE; AMENDING CHAPTER 9A REGARDING 
LANDSCAPING AND TREES; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 9A-4, PERMIT REQUIRED FOR CUTTING 
DOWN TREE; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 9A-
5, APPLICATION FOR PERMIT; REVIEW OF 
APPLICATION; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 
9A-6, ON-SITE INSPECTION; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 9A-7, MINIMUM TREE PLANTINGS; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 9A-10, 
EXCEPTIONS; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 9A-
12, PENALTY; AMENDING ARTICLE IV, CHAPTER 7A, 
SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-53, FENCES 
AND WALLS; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-
58, VISION CLEARANCE AT CORNERS;  PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND 
RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach desires to amend the Land Development Code 

of the Town of Melbourne Beach regarding Landscaping and Trees and Fences and Walls within 
the Town of Melbourne Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that the amendments various sections of Chapter 9A  and Section 
7A-53 of the Land Development Code proposed in this Ordinance will provide for the improved 
regulation of required Landscaping and Trees and Fences and Walls in the Town of Melbourne 
Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that the amendments to various sections of Chapter 9A and Section 
7A-53 of the Land Development Code proposed in this Ordinance are consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, are in the best interests of its citizens of the Town of Melbourne Beach, and 
promote the general health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 7, 2023 the Planning and Zoning Board/Local Planning Agency 
(collectively the “LPA”) at a duly noticed public hearing, reviewed and considered the proposed 

54



 
2 

 

amendments to Chapter 9A and Section 7A-53 of the Land Development Code and took public 
comment regarding the same; and 

 
WHEREAS, the LPA has determined that the proposed amendments to Chapter 9A and 

Section 7A-53 of the Land Development Code are consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan and are in the best interest of the Town of Melbourne and has recommended that the Town 
Commission approve of the same. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 
 

SECTION 1.  That Article I, Chapter 9A, of Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the Town 

of Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

*  *  * 

§9A-4.  PERMIT REQUIRED FOR CUTTING DOWN TREE. 

No person, organization, society, association or corporation, or any agent or representative 
thereof, directly or indirectly, shall cut down, destroy, remove, move or effectively destroy through 
damaging any tree situated on property in any zoning district without first obtaining a permit as 
herein provided.  Tree removal on any property in any zoning district shall be in accordance with 
the standards mandated in the most recent edition of the Best Management Practices - Tree Risk 
Assessment published by the International Society of Arboriculture or a certification from an 
arborist certified by the International Society of Arboriculture or a Florida licensed landscape 
architect as to substantial compliance with such standards.  Any tree which poses an unacceptable 
risk may qualify for removal without a permit pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 163.045 or as such section 
may be amended.   
 
§9A-5.  APPLICATION FOR PERMIT; REVIEW OF APPLICATION. 
 

(a)   Application. Permits for removal, relocation, or replacement of trees covered herein, 
shall be obtained by making application for a permit to the Building Official. The application shall 
be accompanied by a written statement indicating the reason for removal, relocation, or 
replacement of trees and four two copies of a legible site plan drawn to a minimum scale of one 
inch equals 20 feet, indicating the following: 

 
(1)   Location of all existing or proposed structures, improvements, and sites used, properly 
dimensioned and referenced to property lines, setback, and yard requirements; 
 
(2)   Location of existing or proposed utility services, when known; 
 
(3)   The location of all trees on the site designating the trees to be retained, removed, 

relocated, or replaced.  Groups of trees in close proximity  may be designated as clumps of trees 
with the predominant type and estimated number and average diameter noted. Only those trees to 
be removed, relocated, or replaced must be named (common or botanical name) on the site plan; 

55



 
3 

 

 
(4)   The tree information required above shall be summarized in legend form on the plan 

and shall include the reason for the proposed removal, relocation, or replacement; and 
 
(5)   An application involving developed properties may be based on drawings showing 

only  that portion of the site directly involved, and adjacent structures and landscaping or natural 
growth incidental thereto. 
 

(b)   Application review.  Upon receipt of a proper application, the Building Official shall 
review the application, which will include a field check of the site and referral of the application 
to others concerned as necessary, to determine any adverse effect upon the general public welfare, 
adjacent properties, or Town services and facilities. 

 
§9A-6.  ON-SITE INSPECTION. 
 

(a)   On-site inspection. Prior to the issuance of a permit for tree removal or relocation, the 
Building Official or his agent shall conduct an on-site inspection to determine whether or not such 
a removal or relocation conforms to the requirements of this chapter. 

 
(b)   Issuance. 
 

(1)   Removal. No permit shall be issued for tree removal unless one of the 
following conditions exists: 

 
a.   The tree is located in a buildable area or yard where a structure or improvements 

may be placed and it where inability to remove the tree would unreasonably restricts the 
permitted use of the property and the tree removal has been authorized by the Town as part 
of a site plan review; 

 
b.   The tree cannot be relocated on or off the site because of age, type, or size of 

tree; 
c.   The tree is diseased, dead, injured, in danger of falling, too close to existing or 

proposed structures, interferes with utility service, creates unsafe vision clearance, or 
conflicts with other ordinances or regulations; or 

 
d.   It is in the welfare of the general public that the tree be removed for a reason 

other than set forth above. 
 

(2)   Relocation or replacement.  As a condition to the granting of a permit, the 
applicant may be required, where practical, to relocate the tree being removed or be 
required to replace the tree being removed with a tree somewhere within the site of the type 
that will attain an overall height of at least 15 twelve feet (12’) and have a trunk caliper of 
at least two inches (2”) at planting, measured six inches four and one half  feet (4.5’) above 
grade. The green areas left after all building and parking lot requirements have been met 
shall contain a tree density equal to or greater than that existing on the overall site before 
the beginning of construction. 

56



 
4 

 

 
 
§9A-7.  MINIMUM TREE PLANTINGS. 
 

(a)   Trees in residential zoning districts.  A minimum of three trees must exist or must be 
planted on each newly developed residential lot. Trees planted must be of a variety which is 
compatible with the existing soil and drainage-conditions and must be provided with adequate 
water and food materials to encourage growth. Trees shall be planted in locations so as not to cause 
danger to nor interference with existing structures at the time of maturity. 

 
(b)   Buffer and tree planting requirements for all non-residential and multiple family 

residential uses. 
 
(1)   A landscape buffer with a minimum of ten feet in width shall be provided between 
any residentially zoned property and a property utilized for a non-residential or multiple 
family residential use. Responsibility for providing a landscape buffer shall be upon the 
nonresidential or multifamily use. The landscape buffer shall include a minimum of one 
canopy tree for every 40 linear feet, or fraction thereof.  In addition one ornamental tree or 
palm shall be planted for each 50 linear feet, or fraction thereof. 
 
(2)   A landscape buffer with a minimum of ten feet in width shall be provided along all 
road frontage of the site.  The landscape buffer shall include a minimum of one canopy tree 
for every 25 feet of frontage, or fraction thereof. 
 
(3)   A continuous hedge shall be planted in all perimeter landscape buffer areas. 
 
(4)   Parking areas shall be designed so that there is a minimum of 200 square feet of open 
space, not including perimeter landscape buffer areas, at the end of each row of parking.  
In addition a minimum of 200 square feet of open space shall be provided in the interior of 
the parking lot for each ten parking spaces, or fraction thereof.  These open spaces shall be 
distributed throughout the parking lot in a manner that no more than ten parking spaces in 
a row shall be allowed without an intervening landscaped area. 
 
(5)   Minimum specifications for trees and hedge material shall be as follows: 
 

a.   Canopy trees at the time of planting shall have a trunk diameter of two inches 
measured four and one-half feet above the ground grade.  The trees shall be a minimum of 
eight feet in height and have a minimum spread of five feet. The trees are not required to 
be spaced evenly along property lines. 

 
         b.   Ornamental trees at the time of planting shall have a trunk diameter of one and 
one-half inches measured four and one-half feet above the ground grade.  The trees shall 
be a minimum of six feet in height and have a minimum spread of four feet. 
 
         c.   Palms at the time of planting shall have a minimum clear trunk of eight feet. 
 

57



 
5 

 

         d.   Hedge material at the time of planting shall be a minimum of 18 inches in height 
when planted.  Individual plants shall be planted a maximum of 24 inches on center. 
 
(6)   All plant material shall be Florida Number 1 in quality and shall be planted according 
to sound landscape installation standards. 
 
(7)   All landscaping shall be maintained to present a neat and orderly appearance.  Dead, 
deteriorating or missing landscape material shall be replaced with substantially equivalent 
landscaping as permitted by the Land Development Code.  Replacement of landscaping 
material shall occur within 60 days, unless said time is extended by the Town Manager for 
good cause shown. 
 
(8)   Exceptions shall be considered on an individual basis when obstacles such as overhead 
power lines or other conditions inhibit the ability to comply. 
 
(9)   Canopy trees shall be those that develop a crown spread of 25 feet or greater at 
maturity.  Trees with less than 25 feet of crown spread at maturity shall be considered 
ornamental trees. 
 
(10)    Clusters of three palms shall be an acceptable substitute for up to 50% of the required 
canopy trees and 50% of the required ornamental trees. 
 
(11)   Landscape material should be drought tolerant to the extent practical and feasible. A 
water source shall be available to ensure the plant material can be watered while it is being 
established and during drought occurrence. Automatic irrigation systems may be utilized. 
 
(12)   Currently developed sites that do not meet the landscape requirements will not be 
considered non-conforming. Landscaping consistent with the regulations shall be installed 
at these sites, to the extent practical, as redevelopment occurs. Unless complete 
reconstruction or rehabilitation that results in closure of a building or buildings for a period 
of over six months occurs, full compliance with this section shall not be required. 

 
(c)     Minimum replacement standards for new construction.  Any trees that are removed 

for new construction shall be replaced by the same or similar species.  Specifically for mature oak 
trees, replacement of one (1) similar species for each tree removed shall be required which at a 
minimum will attain an overall height of at least twelve feet (12’) and have a trunk caliper of at 
least two inches (2”) at planting, measured four and one half feet (4.5’) above grade. 

 
 (d) Maintenance of trees and landscaping.  If the removal of any tree or landscaping 
from any lot causes the number of remaining trees or vegetative species to fall below the minimum 
standards required by this section or as reflected on any approved site plan or landscaping plan for 
said lot, replacement trees or vegetative species meeting the requirements or this section or any 
approved site plan or landscaping plan shall be re-planted on the lot within thirty (30) days after 
removal. 
 
 

58



 
6 

 

*  *  * 
 
§9A-10.  EXCEPTIONS. 
 
  (a)   In the event that any tree shall be determined to pose an unacceptable risk as provided for in  
§ 9A-4 or to be in a hazardous or dangerous condition so as to endanger the public health, welfare 
or safety and requires immediate removal without delay, authorization may be given by the Public 
Works Department, and the such tree may be removed without first obtaining a written permit as 
herein required. Such authorization shall be given in writing. 
 
(b)   During a period of emergency, such as a hurricane, tropical storm, flood, or any other act of 
God, the requirements of this Article may be waived by the Town Commission. 
 
(c)   All licensed plant or tree nurseries shall be exempt from the terms and provisions of this 
Article only  in relation  to those trees planted and growing on the premises of the licensee, which 
are so planted and growing for sale or intended sale to the general public in the ordinary course of 
the licensee's business. 
 
(d)   The types of trees included on the current Florida Noxious Weed List and Florida Exotic Pest 
Council’s List of Invasive Plant Species shall be exempt from the terms and provisions of this 
article and shall not be used to meet any replacement or planting requirements. 
 

*  *  * 
§9A-12.  PENALTY. 
 

The improper removal of each tree shall constitute a separate offense under this chapter. 
Violation of this chapter and imposition of the penalty shall be determined and imposed by the 
Code Enforcement Board Special Magistrate or by a court of proper jurisdiction. 

 
Removal of any mature oak or similar trees without first obtaining a permit from the Town 

as required in § 9A-4 shall constitute prima facie evidence of a violation which is irreparable or 
irreversible in nature for the purposes of enhanced fine assessment provided for in §11-21(b)(1) or 
as otherwise amended.   

*  *  * 
 

SECTION 2.  That Article IV, Chapter 7A, Section 7A-53, of Appendix “A,” of the 

Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

§7A-53.  FENCES AND WALLS. 
 

*  *  * 
 
(2)   Fence/wall height - all zoning districts except as otherwise provided. 

59



 
7 

 

 
      a.   Fences/walls on rear property lines may be erected up to a maximum height of six (6) 
feet. 
 
      b.   Fences/walls on interior side lot lines may be erected up to a maximum height of six 
(6)feet from the rear property line up to the front building line. 
 
      c.   Portions of fences/walls that extend beyond the front building line may be erected up to a 
maximum height of four (4) feet, except that on residentially zoned lots abutting State Road A1A 
and Oak Street south of Ocean Avenue fences/walls that extend beyond the front building line 
may be erected up to maximum height of six (6) feet.  For any fence/wall installed on any lot 
beyond the front building line on or after March 16, 2023, any portion of the fence/wall running 
parallel to any right-of-way frontage shall have no less than four feet (4’) of vegetation planted 
on the right-of-way side of the fence/wall. 
 
      d.   Fences/walls on corner side lot lines may be erected up to a maximum height of six (6) 
feet from the rear property line up to the front building line. 
 
      e.   Portions of fences/walls on corner side lot lines that extend beyond the front building line 
may be erected up to a maximum height of four (4) feet, except that on residentially zoned lots 
abutting State Road A1A and Oak Street south of Ocean Avenue fences/walls that extend beyond 
the front building line may be erected up to maximum height of six (6) feet.  For any fence/wall 
installed on any lot beyond the front building line on or after March 16, 2023, any portion of the 
fence/wall running parallel to any right-of-way frontage shall have no less than four feet (4’) of 
vegetation planted on the right-of-way side of the fence/wall. Any fence/wall installed on any 
corner side lots that extend beyond the front building line must meet the sight triangular 
clearance requirements of §7A-53(4) and §7A-58 as may be amended. 
 
      f.   Chain link fences, to a maximum height of ten (10) feet, may be erected around tennis 
courts. The fences may be erected on the property line, behind the front building line, or on the 
rear property line, if the fence does not encroach upon any easements, rights-of-way, or similar 
encumbrances. 
 
      g.   Ornamental entrances, fountains, plant containers, and similar architectural features 
exceeding the wall height restriction will be permitted, provided that: 
 
         i.   No such feature shall exceed in height the wall height restriction for that district plus 
one (1) foot; and 
 
         ii.   There shall be only one such feature in any front, side or rear yard, except that there 
may be two (2) entrance gates.; and  
 
         iii.  Entrance gates must be designed such that they do not encroach into any right-of-way. 
 
(3)   Fence/wall height measurement. The required fence/wall height is measured from the 
finished grade of the land where the fence/wall is located prior to berming or placement of fill in 

60



 
8 

 

excess of that required by the Code of Ordinances, to the highest point of the fence/wall, 
including posts and ornamental and architectural features. A survey prepared by a licensed 
Florida mapper and surveyor with reference elevations shall be submitted with all wall and fence 
permit applications. Fence/wall height shall be measured from the surveyed elevation prior to 
placement of fill. 
 
(4)   Vision clearance at corners.  Fences/walls on corners lots shall not be located within the 
triangular clearance area formed by lines that are measured from the point of intersection of the 
rights-of-way a distance of 25 feet, along the lot lines, parallel to each street and the line that 
connects the endpoints of the two lines measured from the point of intersection of the rights-of-
way. 
 
(5)   Maintenance. All fences/walls shall be continuously maintained in a good and non- 
deteriorated condition, free of graffiti, peeling or blistering paint, broken or missing boards or 
posts, broken concrete block masonry, and the like. 
 
(6)   Submission of plans and building permits. Plans showing the exact location of all walls, 
fences, and hedges, and the proposed height, construction, and materials to be used, shall be 
submitted to the Building Official for approval, and the issuance of a permit for same upon 
payment for the permit. Termite and rot-resistant durable wood or rust and corrosion resistant 
material (or finish) shall be used. 
 
(7)   Fencing Enclosing of easements, rights-of-way, and sidewalks. 
 
 (a)   In the event a lot owner fences or encloses any utility easement, as a condition of any 
fence/wall permit, the lot owner agrees and understands that utilities, rights-of-way, and 
sidewalks may need repair, maintenance, installation or removal, from time to time, and that to 
do so it may be necessary for utility companies or public and governmental agencies, or their 
respective employees, agents, or independent contractors, to remove certain portions of a lot 
owner’s fence/wall.  The lot owner/occupant agrees as a permit condition to hold harmless the 
Town, any other governmental agencies, and any utility company, and their respective 
employees, agents, officials, and independent contractors, in both their official and individual 
capacities, from any costs related to fencing/walls or damages to fencing/walls arising from 
removal, repair, installation or maintenance of any utilities, rights-of-way, sidewalks or 
fences/walls. As used in this paragraph, the term utilities shall include cable television 
companies. 
 

(b)   Prior to issuance of a building permit for a fence or wall constructed on an easement 
or right-of-way the property owner shall sign an affidavit stating agreement with the conditions 
of this section. 
 
(8)   Installation. Fencing/walls shall be installed in such a manner as not to detract from the 
value of the adjoining residential property; in particular, the fence/wall shall have the finished 
side face the adjoining property. Walls and fences shall be installed abutting the property line in 
such a manner that they are located entirely on the property of the owner of the structure. 
 

61



 
9 

 

(9)   Fences/walls abutting beach or river access way or rights-of-way. Fences/walls up to a 
height of six (6) feet are allowed adjacent to and abutting any public or private motor vehicle or 
pedestrian access or right-of-way connecting to the Indian River Lagoon or the beach along the 
Atlantic Ocean. Said fence/wall may be located forward of the front building line; provided that 
said fence shall not be of a chain-link type. All of said fence/wall shall be setback a minimum of 
five (5) feet from any right-of-way line. 
 

*  *  * 
SECTION 3.  That Article IV, Chapter 7A, Section 7A-58, of Appendix “A,” of the 

Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

§7A-58.  VISION CLEARANCE AT CORNERS. 

 Vision clearance at corners. Fences/walls on corner lots shall not be located within the triangular 
clearance area formed by lines that are measured from the point of intersection of the rights-of-way a 
distance of 25 feet, along the lot lines, parallel to each street and the line that connects the endpoints to the 
two lines measured from the point of intersection of the rights-of-way. 
 

 SECTION 4.  Severability/Interpretation Clause.   

(a)  In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly unenforceable 

or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not 

affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, sentences, or sections of this 

Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b)  In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1)  Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2)  Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3)  Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text existing 

in the Code of Ordinances.  It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted by the 

62



 
10 

 

asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language existing 

prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 5.  Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as, and 

become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. The sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict.  All ordinances or resolutions or 

parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 7.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  

 SECTION 8.  Adoption Schedule.  

 PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 16th day of February, 2023, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 16th day of March, 2023. 

 
 
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
 

By:____________________________ 
        WYATT HOOVER, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
      (TOWN SEAL) 
_______________________ 
Amber Brown,  
Town Clerk 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



From: Corey OGorman
To: Cliff Repperger; Building Official (buildingofficial@melbournebeachfl.org); Melbourne Beach Town Manager
Subject: RE: Draft Ordinances for Landscaping and Second Kitchens
Date: Thursday, February 2, 2023 7:12:59 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Good morning Cliff,
 

Thanks for copying me, I had a chance to take a look at the draft ordinance for 2nd kitchens and my
initial thoughts and comments are:
 

I currently see a lot of outdoor kitchens in covered patio areas that is more of an outdoor BBQ
area.  If there are a lot of these in Melbourne Beach, you may want to make a distinction

between an outdoor BBQ area and an indoor 2nd kitchen.  Perhaps this could be addressed in

the intent section where a 2nd kitchen is proposed to enable an accessory living area within
the home to be occupied by an extended family member … or something like that.
Many of the codes I have read with this ability talk about this situation in terms of an

“accessory dwelling unit” rather than a 2nd kitchen.  And although I think the 2nd kitchen
approach is fine, it might make sense to consider discussing the intent to allow an accessory
dwelling with its own cooking facilities.  In the MB Code, an Accessory Use is one that is clearly
incidental and subordinate to the principal use, and that may be a way of limiting square
footage, etc.
Other codes that I have read also include language that the accessory unit is not considered a
dwelling unit for density purposes under the comp plan or a second unit under the zoning
code, neither of which would be approved.
In a committee that I participate on in PB County has also reviewed this issue and found that
some provisions in the PBC Code are not enforceable.  For instance, the county has the same
provision for electric meters and the restriction on not renting, but there is always the ability
for a property owner to install a sub-meter.  Also, where paragraph 1 says that direct access
to the kitchen is from the living area or quarters of the SF residence, the language does not
prohibit an exterior access.

 
Regarding the trees, my initial thoughts are:
 

Section 9A-4 references a “Best Practices” document, and I have often seen where the
document is kept on file with the town clerk and can be provided to applicants if needed. 
I don’t recall seeing in the existing or proposed code language anything regarding protected
species of trees which I normally see.  I see an exemption for exotic species, but there are
often codes which specify what are the most desirable tree species for preservation and
planting.  I also see that there is reference to native vegetation and Florida Friendly, although
it might be helpful to define the species that are desirable in MB, or at a minimum keep those
documents/references with the clerk for distribution to applicants if needed.  Also, I usually
see that permits are typically not required for trees under a certain caliper or overall size.  For

83



instance if there is a sapling that is less important than a 100 year old oak that has a 36” DBH.
 
Just food for thought, I hope it helps!  THANKS!
 
Corey W. O'Gorman AICP
Place Planning
700 US Highway One, Suite C
North Palm Beach, FL 33408
561-863-2722 Phone
561-863-2733 fax
561-801-2461 cell

84



Town Commission Agenda Item 

Section: Public Hearing 

Meeting Date:  February 15, 2023 

Subject:  Proposed Ordinance 2023-02 (Second Kitchens) 
 

Submitted By:  Town Attorney Repperger 

Background Information: 
 
On June 15, 2022, the Town Commission directed that Town Staff develop an Ordinance 
improving regulation regarding second kitchens within single family residences (1-RS, 
2-RS, and 3-RS).   
 
On February 7, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Board/LPA voted to recommend approval 
of the proposed ordinance by a vote of 4-1. 
 
On February 15, 2023, the Town Commission passed Ordinance No. 2023-02 on First 
Reading.  The approved Ordinance was revised to address separate living quarters 
attached to the principal structure, and as such is returning to Planning and Zoning Board 
for additional review and consideration.  
 
Summary of Proposed Ordinance Amendments: 
 
• Amends Section 1A-3 to add a definition for “Kitchen” or “Kitchen Facility” which 

excludes outdoor barbeque areas without a range or stove. 
 

• Amends Section 7A-31 to cite to appropriate supplementary regulations.  
 
• Amends Section 7A-32 to cite to appropriate supplementary regulations.  

 
• Amends Section 7A-33 to cite to appropriate supplementary regulations. 

 
• Creates Section 7A-72 to allow for second kitchens in 1-RS, 2-RS, and 3-RS zoning 

districts with permitting and regulatory conditions.  
 

 Attachments: 

•  Draft Ordinance 2023-02. 

•  Minutes from Town Commission Meeting of June 15, 2022 

•  Email from Town Planner Corey O’Gorman regarding additional considerations. 

85



 
1 

 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2023-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING; 
APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE; AMENDING SECTION 1A-3 TO ADD THE 
DEFINITION FOR KITCHEN OR KITCHEN FACILITY; 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7A REGARDING SECOND 
KITCHENS; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 7A-31, 
SECTION 7A-32, AND SECTION 7A-33 TO PERMIT 
SECOND KITCHENS IN 1-RS, 2-RS, AND 3-RS ZONING 
DISTRICTS; CREATING SECTION 7A-72 TO PROVIDE 
SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS FOR 
SECOND KITCHENS IN SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND 
RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach desires to amend the Land Development Code 

of the Town of Melbourne Beach regarding second kitchens in residential zoning districts in the 
Town of Melbourne Beach within the Town of Melbourne Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that amendments to Sections 7A-31, Section 7A-32, and Section 
7A-33 of the Land Development Code to permit second kitchens in 1-RS, 2-RS, and 3-RS zoning 
districts and creation of standards for second kitchens in a new Section 7A-72 of the Land 
Development Code are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, are in the best interests of its 
citizens of the Town of Melbourne Beach, and promote the general health, safety, and welfare of 
the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2023 the Planning and Zoning Board/Local Planning Agency 

(collectively the “LPA”) at a duly noticed public hearing, reviewed and considered the proposed 
amendments to Sections 7A-31, Section 7A-32, and Section 7A-33 of the Land Development Code 
to permit second kitchens in 1-RS, 2-RS, and 3-RS zoning districts and the creation of standards 
for second kitchens in a new Section 7A-72 of the Land Development Code and took public 
comment regarding the same; and 

 
WHEREAS, the LPA has determined that the proposed amendments to Sections 7A-31, 

Section 7A-32, and Section 7A-33 of the Land Development Code to permit second kitchens in 1-
RS, 2-RS, and 3-RS zoning districts and the creation of standards for second kitchens in a new 
Section 7A-72 of the Land Development Code are consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive 

86



 
2 

 

Plan and are in the best interest of the Town of Melbourne and has recommended that the Town 
Commission approve of the same. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Commission and LPA have determined that an amendment to 

Section 1A-3 of the Land Development Code to add the definition of the terms “kitchen” or 
“kitchen facility” is necessary to allow for the desired regulatory changes and that such definition 
shall specifically exclude outdoor barbeque areas without a stove or range.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 
 

SECTION 1.  That Article I, Chapter 1A, Section 1A-3, of Appendix “A,” of the Town 

Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby created to 

read as follows: 

§1A-3.  DEFINITIONS. 
*  *  * 

 KITCHEN OR KITCHEN FACILITY.  A room or area within a room whose primary 
purpose is to store, prepare and cook food. A kitchen will have a refrigerator to store food, counter 
space and a sink to prepare food, and a stove and/or range to cook food.  An outdoor or external 
barbeque area with no stove or range shall not constitute a kitchen or kitchen facility. 

 

*  *  * 

SECTION 2.  That Section 7A-31 of Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

§7A-31.  1-RS SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

*  *  * 

(g)   Supplementary regulations: As provided in §§ 7A-50 through 7A-6972, and Chapter 9A. 
 
 

SECTION 3.  That Section 7A-32 of Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

§7A-32.  2-RS SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

*  *  * 

87



 
3 

 

(g)   Supplementary regulations: As provided in §§ 7A-50 through 7A-6972, and Chapter 9A. 
 
 

SECTION 4.  That Section 7A-33 of Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

§7A-33.  3-RS SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

*  *  * 

(g)   Supplementary regulations: As provided in §§ 7A-50 through 7A-6972, and Chapter 9A. 
 
 

SECTION 5.  That Article IV, Chapter 7A, Section 7A-72, of Appendix “A,” of the 

Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby 

created to read as follows: 

§7A-72.  SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SECOND KITCHEN FACILITY. 
 
 A second kitchen facility may be incorporated into a single-family residence located in the 1-RS, 
2-RS, and 3-RS zoning districts, provided the second kitchen facility meets the following conditions: 
 
 (1) The second kitchen facility and the area or quarters it serves shall be integrated 
architecturally into the principal single-family dwelling unit or may be located within separate quarters 
connected to the principal single-family dwelling unit by a common wall or common roof.   For purposes 
of this Section, a breezeway connection between the principal single-family dwelling unit structure and the 
separate quarters served by the second kitchen may constitute a common roof.  Access to the second kitchen 
shall be as required by the Florida Building Code. 
 
 (2) A permit for construction must be obtained, and a floor plan of the entire single-family 
residence, including the additional kitchen facility, demonstrating compliance with the conditions set forth 
in this section, shall be submitted to the Building Official for plan review and approval prior to construction 
of any second kitchen.  The approved floor plan shall be binding upon all future construction plans in regard 
to the single-family residence and the second kitchen facility. 
 
 (3) No portion of the single-family dwelling unit shall be utilized for rental purposes, and the 
single-family dwelling unit shall be served by only one electrical and water meter. 
 
 (4) The single-family dwelling unit shall continue to be utilized by no more than one family. 
 
 (5) The property upon which the second kitchen is planned to be installed must have a valid 
Brevard County property tax homestead exemption at the time of permit application.  A second kitchen 
facility must be removed within one year of the loss or removal of the homestead exemption maintained on 
the property.   
 
 

88



 
4 

 

  

 SECTION 6.  Severability/Interpretation Clause.   

(a)  In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly unenforceable 

or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not 

affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, sentences, or sections of this 

Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b)  In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1)  Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2)  Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3)  Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text existing 

in the Code of Ordinances.  It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted by the 

asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language existing 

prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 7.  Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as, and 

become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. The sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

 SECTION 8.  Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict.  All ordinances or resolutions or 

parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 9.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  

 SECTION 10.  Adoption Schedule.  

 PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on  

89



 
5 

 

the 16th day of February, 2023, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of  

Melbourne Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 16th day of March, 2023. 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
 

By:____________________________ 
        WYATT HOOVER, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
      (TOWN SEAL) 
_______________________ 
Amber Brown,  
Town Clerk 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



From: Corey OGorman
To: Cliff Repperger; Building Official (buildingofficial@melbournebeachfl.org); Melbourne Beach Town Manager
Subject: RE: Draft Ordinances for Landscaping and Second Kitchens
Date: Thursday, February 2, 2023 7:12:59 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Good morning Cliff,
 

Thanks for copying me, I had a chance to take a look at the draft ordinance for 2nd kitchens and my
initial thoughts and comments are:
 

I currently see a lot of outdoor kitchens in covered patio areas that is more of an outdoor BBQ
area.  If there are a lot of these in Melbourne Beach, you may want to make a distinction

between an outdoor BBQ area and an indoor 2nd kitchen.  Perhaps this could be addressed in

the intent section where a 2nd kitchen is proposed to enable an accessory living area within
the home to be occupied by an extended family member … or something like that.
Many of the codes I have read with this ability talk about this situation in terms of an

“accessory dwelling unit” rather than a 2nd kitchen.  And although I think the 2nd kitchen
approach is fine, it might make sense to consider discussing the intent to allow an accessory
dwelling with its own cooking facilities.  In the MB Code, an Accessory Use is one that is clearly
incidental and subordinate to the principal use, and that may be a way of limiting square
footage, etc.
Other codes that I have read also include language that the accessory unit is not considered a
dwelling unit for density purposes under the comp plan or a second unit under the zoning
code, neither of which would be approved.
In a committee that I participate on in PB County has also reviewed this issue and found that
some provisions in the PBC Code are not enforceable.  For instance, the county has the same
provision for electric meters and the restriction on not renting, but there is always the ability
for a property owner to install a sub-meter.  Also, where paragraph 1 says that direct access
to the kitchen is from the living area or quarters of the SF residence, the language does not
prohibit an exterior access.

 
Regarding the trees, my initial thoughts are:
 

Section 9A-4 references a “Best Practices” document, and I have often seen where the
document is kept on file with the town clerk and can be provided to applicants if needed. 
I don’t recall seeing in the existing or proposed code language anything regarding protected
species of trees which I normally see.  I see an exemption for exotic species, but there are
often codes which specify what are the most desirable tree species for preservation and
planting.  I also see that there is reference to native vegetation and Florida Friendly, although
it might be helpful to define the species that are desirable in MB, or at a minimum keep those
documents/references with the clerk for distribution to applicants if needed.  Also, I usually
see that permits are typically not required for trees under a certain caliper or overall size.  For

110



instance if there is a sapling that is less important than a 100 year old oak that has a 36” DBH.
 
Just food for thought, I hope it helps!  THANKS!
 
Corey W. O'Gorman AICP
Place Planning
700 US Highway One, Suite C
North Palm Beach, FL 33408
561-863-2722 Phone
561-863-2733 fax
561-801-2461 cell

111


	230307 PnZ Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	230207 PNZ Draft Minutes Amended.pdf (p.4-8)
	401 Atlantic St.pdf (p.9-23)
	214 Surf Rd.pdf (p.24-31)
	210 Second Ave.pdf (p.32-41)
	320 Avenue A.pdf (p.42-51)
	Agenda Memo Planning and Zoning Board-LPA 2023-01 (Landscaping and Trees) 3-7-2023.pdf (p.52-53)
	Draft Landscaping and Tree Ordinance 2023-01 (For Planning and Zoning) 3-7-2023.pdf (p.54-63)
	june_15_2022_rtcm_signed_minutes..pdf (p.64-82)
	O'Gorman Email Draft Ordinances for Landscaping and Second Kitchens..pdf (p.83-84)
	Agenda Memo Planning and Zoning Board 2023-02 (Second Kitchens) 3-7-2023.pdf (p.85)
	Draft Second Kitchens Ordinance 2023-02 (For Planning and Zoning) 3-7-2023.pdf (p.86-90)
	june_15_2022_rtcm_signed_minutes.pdf (p.91-109)
	O'Gorman Email Draft Ordinances for Landscaping and Second Kitchens.pdf (p.110-111)

